SUMMARY OF DECISIONS

Planning and	d Development Committee	
Tuesday, 14 August 2018		
Council Chamber		
Councillors:	David Cullen (Chair), Maureen McKay (Vice-Chair), Doug Bainbridge, Lloyd Briscoe, Michael Downing,	
	Michelle Gardner, Jody Hanafin, Liz Harrington, Lizzy Kelly, Graham Lawrence, John Lloyd and Graham Snell.	
-	Tuesday, 14 Council Cha	

1	APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST		
	Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillor J Fraser.	1	
	There were no declarations of interest.		
2	MINUTES - 24 MAY 2018		
	It was RESOLVED that the minutes of the Planning & Development Committee held on 24 May 2018 are app record and signed by the Chair.	roved as a correct	
3	17/00543/FP - 4 FISHERS GREEN, STEVENAGE		
	It was RESOLVED:	<u> </u>	
	That planning permission be refused for the following reason:		
	The proposed demolition of the cottage would result in the loss of an historic property to the detriment of visual amenities of the area and the benefit of the residential development would not compensate for the lost The development is, therefore, contrary to policy TW9 of the Stevenage District Plan Second Review 199 2004), Policies SP8 and GD1 of the Stevenage Borough Local Plan 2011 - 2031, Publication Draft (2016), the Guide SPD (2009), the National Planning Policy Framework (2018) and the Planning Practice Guidance (2014)	e loss of this property. 1991 - 2011 (adopted 6), the Council's Design	

4	18/0	00305/FP - COREYS MILL LANE, STEVENAGE	
	lt wa	as RESOLVED:	
	That	t planning permission be granted subject to the following conditions:	
	1.	The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved location plan, R/153/1 and R/153/3.	plans: Proposed
	2.	The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of t	his permission.
	3.	The materials to be used in the construction of the new parking spaces and footpath areas hereby perr specified on the drawings and application details forming part of this application.	nitted shall be as
	4.	Prior to the first use of the parking spaces hereby permitted, details shall be submitted to and agreed Local Planning Authority of the replacement trees and their locations in order to offset the loss of the existe. The replacement planting shall be undertaken as agreed in the first available planting seas completion of the works.	isting trees at the
	5.	If within a period of five years from the completion of the development the replacement landscaping a removed or become seriously damaged or diseased they shall be replaced in the next planting sease similar size and species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.	
	6.	No removal of trees shall be carried out on site between the 1 st March and 31 st August inclusive in searched beforehand by a suitably qualified ornithologist.	any year, unless
	1		

5	18/	00268/FPM - 85-103 QUEENSWAY, STEVENAGE
	lt w	as RESOLVED:
		It planning permission be granted subject to the applicant having first entered into and completed a Section 106 legal eement to secure/provide financial contributions towards:
	• • • •	Libraries and Youth Facilities; The improvement of outdoor sports facilities and children's play space; Contributions towards a car parking study, TROs and replacement of Pay and Display Machine Signage and Road Markings; The cost of evaluating, assessing the residential Travel Plan; A financial contribution towards sustainable transport infrastructure in Stevenage Town Centre; To secure the on-site provision of affordable housing; and To secure the provision of 1 no. CCTV System,
		detail of which be delegated to the Assistant Director of Planning and Regulation, in liaison with the Council's appointed icitor, and subject to the following conditions:
	1.	The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved plans:
		P1.1; P1.2; P4.1b; P4.2; P4.2.1, P4.3a; P4.4a; P4.4.1 P4.5; P5.1; P5.2; P5.3; P5.4; P5.5, P5.6; P5.7a.
	2.	The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission.
	3.	No development, other than works of demolition, shall commence until a schedule and sample of the materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the development hereby permitted shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

- 4. Notwithstanding details specified in the application submission, no public realm landscaping works shall commence until a scheme of soft and hard landscaping and details of the treatment of all hard surfaces has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include details of all new planting to take place including species, size and method of planting. The approved landscaping scheme shall be implemented within the first available planting season following the first occupation of the buildings or the completion of the development whichever is the sooner.
- 5. Any trees or plants comprised within the scheme of landscaping, which within a period of five years from the completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
- 6. Prior to the first occupation of the ground floor mixed Use Class A1 (Shop) to A3 (Restaurants and Cafes) and Use Class A1 (Shop) to A4 (Bars and Public Houses) units as detailed on drawing number P4.1b, a scheme for the installation of equipment to control the emission of fumes and smell from these premises shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and the approved scheme shall be implemented prior to the first occupation of these units. All equipment installed as part of the scheme shall thereafter be operated and maintained in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions.
- 7. No demolition or construction work relating to this permission shall be carried out on any Sunday, Public or Bank Holiday nor at any other time, except between the hours of 0730 and 1800 on Mondays to Fridays and between the hours of 0830 and 1300 on Saturdays, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These times apply to work which is audible at the site boundary.
- 8. No development, including site clearance or demolition works, shall commence until a Construction Management Plan/Method Statement shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority in consultation with the highways authority. Thereafter, the construction of the development shall only be carried out in accordance with the approved Statement.

The Construction Management/Method Statement shall address the following matters:-

(i) Details of a construction phasing program (including any pre-construction, demolition or enabling works); (ii) Hours of construction operations including times of deliveries and removal of waste; (iii) Site set up and general arrangements for storing plant including cranes, materials, machinery and equipment, temporary offices and other facilities, construction vehicle parking and loading/unloading and vehicle turning area; (iv) Access and protection arrangements around the site for pedestrians, cyclists and other road users; (v) Details of provisions for temporary public car parking during construction; (vi) The location of construction traffic routes to and from the site, details of their signing, monitoring and enforcement measures: (vii) Screening and hoarding details; (viii) End of day tidying up procedures; (ix) Construction and storage compounds (including areas designated for car parking); (x) Siting and details of wheel washing facilities; (xi) Cleaning of site entrances, site tracks and the adjacent public highway; (xii) Disposal of surplus materials and; (xiii) Post construction restoration/reinstatement of the working areas, reinstate construction access. 9. Within 6 months of implementing the permission hereby approved, the applicant shall submit a final Travel Plan with the object of reducing residents travelling to the development by private car which shall be implemented after its approval in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highways Authority. No residential dwellings in the development hereby permitted shall be occupied until the relevant access and car parking 10. areas have been fully constructed, surfaced and permanently marked out. The car parking areas so provided shall be maintained and retained permanently and shall be used for no other purpose at any time. The development permitted by this planning permission shall be carried out in accordance with the letter Ref: 11. 18021/QueenswayStevenage/PG, carried out by GDP Limited dated 26/06/2018, and the following mitigation measures detailed within the drainage strategy: 1. Providing a minimum attenuation of 313m3 to ensure no increase in surface water run off volumes for all rainfall

events up to and including the 1 in 100 year + climate change event.

- 2. Implementing appropriate drainage strategy based on attenuation by using sub-base lined permeable pavement, attenuation tank and green roofs as indicated on drawing no. 18021-200 Surface Water Drainage Strategy General Arrangement dated 29/06/2018, and discharged into Thames Water surface water sewer system.
- 3. Limiting surface water discharge off the southern and eastern site at a maximum allowable discharge rate of 4.9 I/s for any rainfall event up to the 1 in 100 year plus 40% for climate change event.

The mitigation measures shall be fully implemented prior to occupation and subsequently in accordance with the timing/phasing arrangements embodied with the scheme, or within any other period as may subsequently be agreed, in writing, by the local planning authority.

- 12. No development shall take place until the final design of the drainage scheme is completed and agreed by Thames Water and sent to the Local Planning Authority for written approval. The scheme shall also include:-
 - Confirmation on the final discharge rate for the whole site with contribution of each sub-catchment (western, eastern and southern) with figures supported by drainage calculations presented in a manner that the link can be made with specific locations on drawings.
 - Formal permission to continue using the existing connection to the public surface water sewer from the water company that must include figures;
 - Engineering details of all SuDS features should be provided in line with the SuDS Manual (CIRIA C-753).
- 13. Upon completion of the development a final management and maintenance plan must be supported by a full set of asbuilt drawings, a post construction location plan of the SuDS components cross-referenced with a maintenance diagram to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime.
- 14. No development, including site clearance or demolition works, shall commence until a scheme has been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority for ensuring that internal noise levels do not exceed those specified in BS8233:2014 in so far as to the living rooms, dining rooms and bedrooms in the residential development. In addition, details shall also be provided with respect to ventilation and thermal comfort arrangements which would be utilised within the residential development. The development shall thereafter be implemented in accordance with the approved scheme unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

- 15. No development, including site clearance or demolition works, shall commence until a scheme of dust control measures has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Environmental Health Department and shall be adhered to throughout the construction period. Dust and airborne particulates from operations on site shall be minimised by spraying with water or by carrying out of other such works that may be necessary to suppress dust.
- 16. No external lighting shall be installed on site unless details of such lighting, including the intensity of illumination and predicted light contours, have first been submitted to, and approved in writing the Local Planning Authority prior to first occupation of the development. Any external lighting shall accord with the details so approved.
- 17. No development, including site clearance or demolition works, shall commence until a methodology for the screening or enclosure of plant and machinery to be used during the construction period shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning authority before works are commenced. The siting of plant and machinery shall be away from noise sensitive areas wherever possible. Vehicles and machines in intermittent use shall be shut down in the intervening periods between works.
- 18. No development shall take place until a detailed Site Waste Management Plan (SWMP) to detail how waste materials generated as a result of the proposed demolition and/or construction methods shall be disposed of, and detail the level and type of soil to be imported to the site as part of the development has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
- 19. No development shall take place until a site investigation of the nature and extent of contamination has been carried out in accordance with a methodology which has previously been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The results of the site investigation shall be made available to the local planning authority before any development begins. If any significant contamination is found during the site investigation, a report specifying the measures to be taken to remediate the site to render it suitable for the development hereby permitted shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The site shall be remediated in accordance with the approved measures before the properties are occupied.

If, during the course of development, any contamination is found which has not been identified in the site investigation, additional measures for the remediation of this contamination shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The remediation of the site shall incorporate the approved additional measures.

- 20. In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken and where remediation is necessary a remediation scheme must be prepared in accordance with the requirements of condition 21, which is subject to the approval of the Local Planning Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with condition 22.
- 21. A detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use by removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and other property and the natural and historic environment must be prepared, and is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. The scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures. The scheme must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the intended use of the land after remediation.
- 22. The approved remediation scheme must be carried out in accordance with its terms prior to the commencement of development other than that required to carry out remediation, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Local Planning Authority must be given two weeks written notification of commencement of the remediation scheme works. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme, a verification report that demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced and is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority.
- 23. Prior to the first occupation/use of the dwellings and development hereby permitted the approved secure cycle parking areas and public cycle parking shall be constructed in accordance with the details submitted with this planning application and shall be permanently retained in that form.

	24. Prior to the first occupation/use of the dwellings and development hereby permitted the approved refuse/recycle store shall be constructed in accordance with the details submitted with this planning application and shall be permanently retained in that form.		
	25.	No development, including site clearance or demolition works, shall commence until a detailed Demolition and Construction Method Statement shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Method Statement shall detail and advise of the measures in accordance with the best practicable means to be used to minimise construction noise and vibration likely to affect adjacent residential premises. The approved Statement shall be adhered to throughout the construction period.	
6	18/00	0279/FPM - 85-103 QUEENSWAY, STEVENAGE	
	It was RESOLVED : That planning permission be granted subject to the applicant having first entered into and completed a Section 106 legal agreement to secure/provide financial contributions towards: Contributions towards TROs and replacement of Pay and Display Machine Signage and Road Markings; and Secure provision of a CCTV camera, the detail of which be delegated to the Assistant Director of Planning and Regulation, in liaison with the Council's appointed Solicitor, and subject to the following conditions:		-
			l
	1.	The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved plans:	
		P1.1; P1.2; P4.1a; P4.2; P4.3; P5.1; P5.2; P5.3; P5.4; P5.6.	
	2.	The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission.	

- 3. No development, other than works of demolition, shall commence until a schedule and sample of the materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the development hereby permitted shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with the approved details.
- 4. Notwithstanding details specified in the application submission, no public realm landscaping works shall commence until a scheme of soft and hard landscaping and details of the treatment of all hard surfaces has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include details of all new planting to take place including species, size and method of planting. The approved landscaping scheme shall be implemented within the first available planting season following the first occupation of the buildings or the completion of the development whichever is the sooner.
- 5. Any trees or plants comprised within the scheme of landscaping, which within a period of five years from the completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
- 6. Prior to the first occupation of the ground floor mixed Use Class A1 (Shop) to A3 (Restaurants and Cafes) and Use Class A1 (Shop) to A4 (Bars and Public Houses) units as detailed on drawing number P4.1a, a scheme for the installation of equipment to control the emission of fumes and smell from these premises shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and the approved scheme shall be implemented prior to the first occupation of these units. All equipment installed as part of the scheme shall thereafter be operated and maintained in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions.
- 7. No demolition or construction work relating to this permission shall be carried out on any Sunday, Public or Bank Holiday nor at any other time, except between the hours of 0730 and 1800 on Mondays to Fridays and between the hours of 0830 and 1300 on Saturdays, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These times apply to work which is audible at the site boundary.

8.	No development, including site clearance or demolition works, shall commence until a Construction Management
	Plan/Method Statement shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority in consultation with the highways authority. Thereafter, the construction of the development shall only be carried out in accordance with the approved Statement.

The Construction Management/Method Statement shall address the following matters:-

(i) Details of a construction phasing program (including any pre-construction, demolition or enabling works);

(ii) Hours of construction operations including times of deliveries and removal of waste;

(iii) Site set up and general arrangements for storing plant including cranes, materials, machinery and equipment, temporary offices and other facilities, construction vehicle parking and loading/unloading and vehicle turning area;

(iv) Access and protection arrangements around the site for pedestrians, cyclists and other road users;

(v) Details of provisions for temporary public car parking during construction;

(vi) The location of construction traffic routes to and from the site, details of their signing, monitoring and enforcement measures;

(vii) Screening and hoarding details;

(viii) End of day tidying up procedures;

(ix) Construction and storage compounds (including areas designated for car parking);

(x) Siting and details of wheel washing facilities;

(xi) Cleaning of site entrances, site tracks and the adjacent public highway;

(xii) Disposal of surplus materials and;

(xiii) Post construction restoration/reinstatement of the working areas, reinstate construction access.

- 9. Prior to the first use of the gym hereby permitted the relevant access and car parking areas shall have been fully constructed, surfaced and permanently marked out. The car parking areas so provided shall be maintained and retained permanently and shall be used for no other purpose at any time.
- 10. The development permitted by this planning permission shall be carried out in accordance with the letter Ref: 18021/QueenswayStevenage/PG, carried out by GDP Limited dated 26/06/2018, and the following mitigation measures

detailed within the drainage strategy:

- 1. Providing a minimum attenuation of 313m3 to ensure no increase in surface water run off volumes for all rainfall events up to and including the 1 in 100 year + climate change event.
- 2. Implementing appropriate drainage strategy based on attenuation by using sub-base lined permeable pavement, attenuation tank and green roofs as indicated on drawing no. 18021-200 Surface Water Drainage Strategy General Arrangement dated 29/06/2018, and discharged into Thames Water surface water sewer system.
- 3. Limiting surface water discharge off the southern and eastern site at a maximum allowable discharge rate of 4.9 I/s for any rainfall event up to the 1 in 100 year plus 40% for climate change event.

The mitigation measures shall be fully implemented prior to occupation and subsequently in accordance with the timing/phasing arrangements embodied with the scheme, or within any other period as may subsequently be agreed, in writing, by the local planning authority.

- 11. No development shall take place until the final design of the drainage scheme is completed and agreed by Thames Water and sent to the Local Planning Authority for written approval. The scheme shall also include:-
 - Confirmation on the final discharge rate for the whole site with contribution of each sub-catchment (western, eastern and southern) with figures supported by drainage calculations presented in a manner that the link can be made with specific locations on drawings.
 - Formal permission to continue using the existing connection to the public surface water sewer from the water company that must include figures;
 - Engineering details of all SuDS features should be provided in line with the SuDS Manual (CIRIA C-753).
- 12. Upon completion of the development a final management and maintenance plan must be supported by a full set of asbuilt drawings, a post construction location plan of the SuDS components cross-referenced with a maintenance diagram to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime.
- 13. No development, including site clearance or demolition works, shall commence until a scheme of dust control measures has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Environmental

Health Department and shall be adhered to throughout the construction period. Dust and airborne particulates from operations on site shall be minimised by spraying with water or by carrying out of other such works that may be necessary to suppress dust.

- 14. No external lighting shall be installed on site unless details of such lighting, including the intensity of illumination and predicted light contours, have first been submitted to, and approved in writing the Local Planning Authority prior to first occupation of the development. Any external lighting shall accord with the details so approved.
- 15. No development, including site clearance or demolition works, shall commence until a methodology for the screening or enclosure of plant and machinery to be used during the construction period shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning authority before works are commenced. The siting of plant and machinery shall be away from noise sensitive areas wherever possible. Vehicles and machines in intermittent use shall be shut down in the intervening periods between works.
- 16. No development shall take place until a detailed Site Waste Management Plan (SWMP) to detail how waste materials generated as a result of the proposed demolition and/or construction methods shall be disposed of, and detail the level and type of soil to be imported to the site as part of the development has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
- 17. No development shall take place until a site investigation of the nature and extent of contamination has been carried out in accordance with a methodology which has previously been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The results of the site investigation shall be made available to the local planning authority before any development begins. If any significant contamination is found during the site investigation, a report specifying the measures to be taken to remediate the site to render it suitable for the development hereby permitted shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The site shall be remediated in accordance with the approved measures before the properties are occupied.

If, during the course of development, any contamination is found which has not been identified in the site investigation, additional measures for the remediation of this contamination shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The remediation of the site shall incorporate the approved additional measures.

- 18. In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken and where remediation is necessary a remediation scheme must be prepared in accordance with the requirements of condition 19, which is subject to the approval of the Local Planning Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with condition 20.
- 19. A detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use by removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and other property and the natural and historic environment must be prepared, and is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. The scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures. The scheme must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the intended use of the land after remediation.
- 20. The approved remediation scheme must be carried out in accordance with its terms prior to the commencement of development other than that required to carry out remediation, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Local Planning Authority must be given two weeks written notification of commencement of the remediation scheme works. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme, a verification report that demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced and is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority.
- 21. Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby permitted the approved secure cycle parking areas and public cycle parking shall be constructed in accordance with the details submitted with this planning application and shall be permanently retained in that form.
- 22. Prior to the use of the development hereby permitted the approved refuse/recycle stores shall be constructed in accordance with the details submitted with this planning application and shall be permanently retained in that form.

	23. No development, including site clearance or demolition works, shall commence until a detailed Demolition and Construction Method Statement shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Method Statement shall detail and advise of the measures in accordance with the best practicable means to be used to minimise construction noise and vibration likely to affect adjacent residential premises. The approved Statement shall be adhered to throughout the construction period.	
7	18/00153/FPM - MBDA UK, SIX HILLS WAY, STEVENAGE	
	It was RESOLVED:	
	That temporary planning permission be granted subject to the following conditions:	
	 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved plans: 919 A000 B; 919 A001 B; 919 A002 K; 919 A010 B; 919 A020 B; 919 A040; 919 CM01-01; S170283-111B; S170 112B; S170283-311A; P2484-01-01 C; P2484-04 C; P2484-08-01 C; P2484-08-02 B; P2484-09-01 A; P2484-09-02 A 	
	2. Following a period 2 years from the completion of the development, in which confirmation of completion of development shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority in writing, the building hereby permitted shall be removed and the land restored to its former condition in accordance with a scheme of works to be submitted to and approved writing by the Local Planning Authority.	
	3. The proposed development hereby permitted shall be constructed in accordance with the details as specified in the application submission unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.	
	4. Prior to the first use of the modular offices hereby permitted, the proposed secure cycle parking area as detailed on drawing numbers 919L A 010 B and 919 L 002 J shall be erected and thereafter retained during the lifetime of the development and shall not be used for any other purpose.	

- 5. In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in accordance with the requirements of this condition which are as follows:-
 - (i) a survey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination;
 - (ii) an assessment of the potential risks to:
 - human health,
 - property (existing or proposed) including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes,
 - adjoining land,
 - groundwaters and surface waters,
 - ecological systems.

Where remediation is necessary a remediation scheme must be prepared in accordance with the requirements of condition 6, which is subject to the approval of the Local Planning Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with condition 7.

- 6. A detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use by removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and other property and the natural and historic environment must be prepared, and is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. The scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures. The scheme must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the intended use of the land after remediation.
- 7. The approved remediation scheme must be carried out in accordance with its terms prior to the commencement of development other than that required to carry out remediation, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning

Authority. The Local Planning Authority must be given two weeks written notification of commencement of the remediation scheme works. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme, a verification report that demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced, and is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority.

- 8. No demolition or construction works relating to this permission shall be carried out on any Sunday or Bank Holiday, nor before 07.30 hours or after 18.00 hours on any weekdays, nor on any Saturday before 09.00 hours or after 13.00 hours. The hours specified relate to works which are audible at the site boundary.
- 9. The development permitted by this planning permission shall be carried out in accordance with the approved Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy Rev. A dated 20/04/2018, produced by AVIE Consulting Ltd, and in accordance with the Drawing No. P2484-01-01 Rev C Proposed drainage layout, date 20.04.2018, and the following mitigation measures detailed within the FRA:
 - 1. Limiting the surface water run off generated by the critical storm events so that it will not exceed the greenfield run off rate during the 1 in 100 year event plus 30% climate change event.
 - 2. Providing storage to ensure no increase in surface water run off volumes for all rainfall events up to and including the 1 in 100 year + climate change event of total storage volume in underground cellular attenuation tank.
 - 3. Discharge of surface water from the private drain at greenfield run off rate into the Thames Water sewer network.

The mitigation measures shall be fully implemented prior to occupation and subsequently in accordance with the timing / phasing arrangements embodied within the scheme, or within any other period as may subsequently be agreed, in writing, by the local planning authority.

10. The surface water drainage strategy hereby permitted shall be managed and maintained in accordance with the "Attenuation Management Plan for Building 1400 MBDA Systems" prepared by Elliott dated 18 May 2018 (document reference: S170283 Rev A – 18/05/18).

- 11. The security fencing which will enclose the modular office building shall be constructed in accordance with approved drawing 919L A 040 and retained for the duration of the building being in place.
- 12. Prior to the first use of the development hereby permitted, details shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority of the lighting improvements to be proposed to the underpass to Six Hills Way which adjoins the application site. The lighting details and any maintenance shall be carried out in accordance with the approved scheme.
- 13. All hard surfacing comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall be carried out within three months of the first occupation of the building(s) or the completion of the development, whichever is the sooner.
- 14. Prior to the commencement of the development, a Construction Management Plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the highway authority. Thereafter, the construction of the development shall only be carried out in accordance with the approved statement. The Construction Management Plan/Method Statement shall address the following matters:-

(i) Details of a construction phasing programme (including any pre-construction, demolition or enabling works);

(ii) Hours of construction operations including times of deliveries and removal of waste;

(iii) Site set up and general arrangements for storing plan including cranes, materials, machinery and equipment, temporary offices and other facilities, construction vehicle parking and loading/unloading and vehicle turning areas;

(iv) Access and protection arrangements around the site for pedestrians, cyclists and other road users;

(v) Details of provisions for temporary car parking during construction;

(vi) The location of construction traffic routes to and from the site, details of their signing, monitoring and enforcement measures;

		(vii) Screening and hoarding details;
		(viii) End of day tidying procedures;
		(ix) Construction and storage compounds (including areas designated for car parking);
		(x) Siting and details of wheel washing facilities;
		(xi) Cleaning of site entrances, site tracks and the adjacent public highway, and
		(xii) Disposal of surplus materials.
8	18/00	0000/ENF - 4 OAKDELL, STEVENAGE
	It was	RESOLVED:
	1.	That an Enforcement Notice be issued and served by the Assistant Director of Planning and Regulation, and subject to an appointed solicitor by the Council being satisfied as to the evidence, requiring the removal of the timber bridge structure and to reinstate the land where necessary to its original state, and re-instate the fencing along the rear boundary of the residential curtilage. The precise terms of the Enforcement Notice, including all time periods, to be delegated to the Assistant Director of Planning and Regulation.
	2.	That, subject to an appointed solicitor by the Council being satisfied as to the evidence, the Assistant Director of Planning and Regulation be authorised to take all steps necessary, including prosecution or any other litigation/works in default to secure compliance with the Enforcement Notice.
	3.	That in the event of any appeal against the Enforcement Notice, the Assistant Director of Planning and Regulation be authorised to take any action required to defend the Enforcement Notice and any appeal against the refusal of planning permission.

9	18/0	00000/ENF - BRICKDALE HOUSE, SWINGATE, STEVENAGE
	lt wa	as RESOLVED:
	1.	That an Enforcement Notice be issued and served by the Assistant Director of Planning and Regulation, and subject an appointed solicitor by the Council being satisfied as to the evidence, requiring the removal of the unauthorised refu- store. The precise terms of the Enforcement Notice, including all time periods, to be delegated to the Assistant Direct of Planning and Regulation.
	2. That, subject to an appointed solicitor by the Council being satisfied as to the evidence, the Assistant Di Planning and Regulation be authorised to take all steps necessary, including prosecution or any other litigation/ default to secure compliance with the Enforcement Notice.	
		detault to secure compliance with the Enforcement Notice.
	3.	That in the event of any appeal against the Enforcement Notice, the Assistant Director of Planning and Regulation authorised to take any action required to defend the Enforcement Notice.
10		That in the event of any appeal against the Enforcement Notice, the Assistant Director of Planning and Regulation
10	CON	That in the event of any appeal against the Enforcement Notice, the Assistant Director of Planning and Regulation authorised to take any action required to defend the Enforcement Notice.
10	CON The Levy	That in the event of any appeal against the Enforcement Notice, the Assistant Director of Planning and Regulation authorised to take any action required to defend the Enforcement Notice. MMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY Planning Policy Manager gave a presentation updating Members on the next steps regarding the Community Infrastructure

INFORMATION REPORT - APPEALS/CALLED IN APPLICATIONS	
It was RESOLVED that the report is noted.	
URGENT PART I BUSINESS	
None.	
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC	
Not required.	
URGENT PART II BUSINESS	
None.	
	URGENT PART I BUSINESS None. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC Not required. URGENT PART II BUSINESS